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The Stewards have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (“the Club”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2011.

Principal activities

During the year, the Group was primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in
Hong Kong and in operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lottery.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are shown on pages 169 to 170.

Financial statements

The results and appropriations of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 125. All figures in the annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements are expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Club during the year are set out in notes 27 to
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Donations
During the year, the Group appropriated HK$1,800 million to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities
Trust and donated HK$204 million for other charitable purposes.

Property, plant and equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Club are shown
in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Stewards
The Board of Stewards is listed on page 5 of this annual report.

Mr T Brian Stevenson and Dr Simon S O Ip were elected Chairman and Deputy Chairman
respectively immediately after the Annual General Meeting 2010.

Dr Eric Li Ka Cheung was elected as a Steward at the Annual General Meeting 2010 for a one-
year term to replace Dr John C C Chan who retired as Chairman and as a Steward.

Mr lain F Bruce retired as a Steward on 4 March 2011. On the same day, Sir C K Chow was
co-opted as a Steward to replace Mr lain F Bruce.

In accordance with the Club’s Articles of Association, Mr T Brian Stevenson, Dr Simon S O Ip,
Mr Lester C H Kwok and Dr Eric Li Ka Cheung will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting. All four Stewards retiring by rotation, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.

Sir C K Chow was co-opted as a Steward to replace Mr lain F Bruce until the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year
under review. No Steward had, during or at the end of the year, any material interest in any contract
of significance to the business of the Club or any of its subsidiaries.

Management contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Club were entered into or existed during the year.
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Auditors

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire

and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Stewards and is signed

for and on behalf of the Board.

T Brian Stevenson
Chairman
22 July 2011
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To the Members of The Hong Kong Jockey Club
(incorporated in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the
“Club”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 125 to 170, which comprise
the consolidated and the Club’s statements of financial position as at 30 June 2011, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Stewards’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The Stewards of the Club are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Stewards determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Stewards, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the Club as at 30 June 2011, and of the Group’s surplus and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountant
Hong Kong, 22 July 2011



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT / REWER

BEAA=THLEE

for the year ended 30 June

BEBT in HK$ million FfizF Note 2011 2010
(PfiEE note 1)  (Fff&E note 1)
BRREEE Amounts wagered by customers 2.2 128,553 116,930
BEREFBA Betting and lottery revenue 4 23,727 21,154
BEHRRREFEY Betting and lottery duty (15,011) (13,339)
NES ?5’|‘ﬂﬁ§%%$§ Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (51) (39)
BEES Lotteries Fund (1,030) (956)
AR RAE Net margin and commission 5 7,635 6,820
HAlg A Other revenue 6 2,178 1,958
9,813 8,778
FEE=— I Operating costs 7 (6,789) (6,311)
REBmeR Operating surplus 3,024 2,467
FERAE W Interest income from deposits 61 23
BERERRPREASHNRE Surplus from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios 8 626 838
BERESRENREE Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 9 845 80
B E A Finance costs (10) (61)
B Bk Financial surplus 1,522 880
Frib B A B RS 18 Share of loss of an associate 17 - (8)
FHEHREEHIEEEF/ (EiR) Share of profit/(loss) of a jointly controlled entity 18 15 (25)
?DF?%HIE BigZEETES Surplus before taxation, charitable donations to
ERFRERTFEARSANEREG Charities Trust and transfer to Contingency Fund 4,561 3,314
%RIE Taxation 10 (345) (282)
?DB«%"FRIE?é BRis2EETES Surplus after taxation and before charitable donations
ERFRERTFEARSANEREG to Charities Trust and transfer to Contingency Fund 4,216 3,032
ﬁé‘ ?Eﬂ%% BEREETES Appropriations to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 11
- BRE — Allocations Fund (1,130) (1,100)
- ﬁzixgﬁ — Capital Fund (670) (400)
BRRBRHRENFERR Net surplus after appropriations and taxation 2,416 1,532
ERTEAES Transfer to Contingency Fund 28 (845) (80)
RE BB N BRERHE Retained surplus transferred to Accumulated Reserves 27 1,571 1,452
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / REXEBAR

BEAA=ZTHLFE

for the year ended 30 June

BEET in HK$ million FfizE Note 2011 2010
BREBRBENFERER Net surplus after appropriations and taxation 2,416 1,532
Hib2mEas Other comprehensive income
At ERKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BB/ (EE) Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of
BEEESRRPREAS Debt securities and long-term investment portfolios 27 1,043 (33)
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments 28 1,108 449
BRESRIREAS Development Fund long-term investment portfolios 29 21 46
EFDEBANGERNERE (k) FHiE Realised (gains)/losses reclassified to income statement
BEEESRRPREAS Debt securities and long-term investment portfolios 27 (12) 24
BREERE Contingency Fund investments 28 (27) 630
BEXHIAERE Currency translation differences 27 30 21
REERBEHMEE KGR Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,163 1,137
AEEEHEBZLATE Total comprehensive income for the year 4,579 2,669
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION /ﬂ?f BR R &K

#:4& Consolidated E& Club
ANB=+H +tA—H AA=+H tA—AH
at 30 June at 1 July at 30 June at 1 July
BEBT in HK$ million Fft&E Note 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
(E% restated) (E%| restated) (E7% restated) (E7%| restated)
ERBEE Non-current assets
W - RIB N EEM Property, plant and equipment 13 4,595 4,762 4,480 3,839 3,910 3,690
EEEYOEE R 4t AR Leasehold land and land use
rights under operating leases 14 1,353 - - - - =
REYE Investment properties 15 3 4 5 3 4 5
B A RRE Investments in subsidiaries 16 - - - 1,134 1,134 1,134
BN FRE Investment in an associate 17 - - 7 - - -
HEEFBERIRE Investment in
a jointly controlled entity 18 54 36 - - - -
BRESKRE Contingency Fund investments 28 12,488 10,562 9,403 12,488 10,562 9,403
REKREASE Long-term investment portfolios 19 13,012 10,861 9,797 10,601 8,952 8,013
REIFEIFUE Long-term prepayments 465 675 446 - - -
HihEE Other assets 20 287 287 330 287 287 330
32,257 27,187 24,468 28,352 24,849 22,575
REBEE Current assets
BEEESES Debt securities portfolio 21 318 1,401 1,592 318 1,401 1,592
eIt A B FTER E R Loans to subsidiaries 16 - - = 1,910 1,152 465
BEREEE Assets held for sale 15 = = = = = =
HittReEE Other current assets 22 758 639 639 417 390 388
FEW BB A RIMFRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 16 = = = 147 113 149
FEUN BB A R FRIE Amount due from an associate 17 - 11 - - - =
EHAER Short-term deposits 23 5,243 3,631 3,755 4,537 3,083 3,193
RITER BeRkEMRHES Bank balances, cash and
other liquid funds 1,084 2,039 1,099 394 249 256
7,403 7,721 7,085 7,723 6,388 6,043
ik =R Current liabilities
EHIER Shortterm loans 24 (180) (466) (483) - - -
FE(SBRFR R FE U GRIE Creditors and
receipts in advance 25  (4,227) (3,838) (3,189) (2,568) (2,366) (2,113)
FEA T Bt BB A Bl RO FRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 16 - - - (3,202) (3,094) (3,024)
FEfTBLIE Taxation payable (352) (298) (276) (94) (109) (84)
(4,759) (4,602) (3,948) (5,864) (5,569) (5,221)
MBEEFAE Net current assets 2,644 3,119 3,137 1,859 819 822
FERBAE Non-current liabilities
EEREAE Deferred tax liabilities 26 (64) (48) (16) (65) (58) (22)
34,837 30,258 27,589 30,146 25,610 23,375
E1] Reserves 27 21,328 18,696 17,232 17,658 15,048 13,972
ERES Contingency Fund 28 12,488 10,562 9,403 12,488 10,562 9,403
BRES Development Fund 29 1,021 1,000 954 - - -
EAE Total equity 34,837 30,258 27,589 30,146 25,610 23,375
= T Brian Stevenson
i H Simon S O Ip
EHR Stewards
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY / RERREHX

ERES BRES

B Contingency ~ Development W
BEBT in HK$ million Reserves Fund Fund Total
—O—OftB—R#& Balance at 1 July 2010 18,696 10,562 1,000 30,258
AEEEHEBRLATE Total comprehensive income for the year 2,632 1,926 21 4,579
—O——HXRB=1TH#ER Balance at 30 June 2011 21,328 12,488 1,021 34,837
ZOONE+LB—H#&E Balance at 1 July 2009 17,232 9,403 954 27,589
AEEEHEBRLATE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,464 1,159 46 2,669
ZO—OFARNA=1TH&s Balance at 30 June 2010 18,696 10,562 1,000 30,258
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS / RERERER

BEAA=THLEE

for the year ended 30 June

BEBT in HK$ million FfizF Note 2011 2010
—E ) Operating activities
EETHMEENERESRA Cash inflow generated from operations 31 4,185 3,825
EXFFE Interest paid (10) (25)
EfTFEH Income tax paid (275) (228)
BRTEEESSELEETES Appropriations to
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (1,800) (1,500)
EETHWFRERA Net cash inflow from operating activities 2,100 2,072
RETE Investing activities
BBV REREM Purchase of property, plant and equipment (840) (1,221)
BELEENES LR T hE AR Purchase of leasehold land and
land use rights under operating leases (936) -
HEME  RERSEM Sale of property, plant and equipment 2 1
B WEFI & Interest received 417 367
EWERE Dividends received 243 490
mEEZEHEREMEEE Capital injection in a jointly controlled entity - (61)
BEAHEENKEE Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (17,331) (21,455)
HERBENKERE Sale of available-for-sale financial assets 17,004 20,144
BERAVEEEBERIIRNIMBEEE Purchase of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (53) (90)
HER A EBEBERIIRNMEEE Sale of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss 210 210
HOTESBIT AR )/ WHEEERE Net (payment)/receipt for derivative financial instruments (208) 355
REREHASHFERRS Decrease in deposits held in
long-term investment portfolios 189 -
REFHNFRESRE Net cash outflow from investing activities (1,303) (1,260)
BEEE Financing activities
HEREE Repayment of borrowings (297) (17)
REFTHHNFRESRE Net cash outflow from financing activities (297) (17)
HERBESEEYFEM Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 500 795
FNBRESRRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,670 4,854
Hiaas Exchange gains 157 21
FRRERBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6,327 5,670
HERBEEENEEINT Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
ySH-EER N Short-term deposits 5,243 3,631
RITER BEREMRBES Bank balances, cash and other liquid funds 1,084 2,039
6,327 5,670
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1 General information
The Group is primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in Hong Kong and in
operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lottery. The Club is incorporated
in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee. The address of its registered office is 1 Sports
Road, Happy Valley, Hong Kong. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are mentioned
on pages 169 to 170.

The last five race meetings of the 2009/10 racing season were held on 1 July 2010, 4 July 2010,
7 July 2010, 11 July 2010 and 14 July 2010 (“July 2010 race meetings”) and the last three race
meetings of the 2010/11 racing season were held on 1 July 2011, 6 July 2011 and 10 July 2011
(“July 2011 race meetings”). Accordingly, the financial results of July 2010 race meetings have
been included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2011 and the
financial results of July 2011 race meetings will be shown in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ending 30 June 2012. Both the consolidated financial results of the 2009/10 and
2010/11 full racing seasons covering 83 race meetings are shown on page 171.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$
million), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 125 to 170 were approved by the Board of
Stewards on 22 July 2011.

2 Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”), which include all applicable individual HKFRS, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and derivative financial instruments which are carried
at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.
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2 Principal accounting policies (cont.)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(a) New interpretation and amendment that are relevant to the Group’s operations and are effective

for the current accounting period
(i) HK-Int 5 ‘Presentation of financial statements - classification by the borrower of a term loan
that contains a repayment on demand clause’. This interpretation provides guidance on the
classification by the borrower of a term loan that contains a repayment on demand clause, with
reference to the criteria for classification of liabilities as current or non-current as set out in
paragraph 69 of HKAS 1. Consequently, amounts repayable under a loan agreement which
includes a clause that gives the lender the unconditional right to call the loan at any time shall
be classified by the borrower as current in its statement of financial position.

Apart from the effects of adopting HKAS 17 (amendment) as stated below, the adoption of

the above new interpretation has no significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

(i) HKAS 17 (amendment) ‘Leases’, deletes specific guidance regarding classification of leases
of land, so as to eliminate inconsistency with the general guidance on lease classification. As
a result, leases of land should be classified as either finance or operating lease using the
general principles of HKAS 17, i.e. whether the lease transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of an asset to the lessee. Prior to the amendment, land has been classified
as an operating lease when the title to that land is not expected to pass to the Group at the
end of the lease term.

The Group has reassessed the classification of leases of land as at 1 July 2010. As a result
of the reassessment, the Group has reclassified all leasehold land in Hong Kong from operating
lease to finance lease. As the leasehold land is held for own use, it is classified as property,
plant and equipment on the statement of financial position and is depreciated over the unexpired
term of the lease.

HKAS 17 (amendment) has been applied retrospectively with comparatives restated. The
effect of the resulting changes on the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated income statement is summarised below:

Effect on statements of financial position as at

£E Group 58 Club
~A=+H ANA=TAH +tH —H ~A=+H NA=+8 A —H8
30 June 30 June 1 July 30 June 30 June 1 July
BEBT in HK$ million 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
FHE T i 2 T ithfE AREE A Decrease in leasehold land
and land use rights (569) (586) (602) (549) (566) (582)
MIZE > SRAEREEMIE N Increase in property,
plant and equipment 569 586 602 549 566 582

HAFERRRNWTZE

Effect on income statements for the year ended

£ Group 58 Club
~A=+H NA=+H ~A=+H NA=+H8
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million 2011 2010 2011 2010
FHE 1 [ 4 b {F SR A Decrease in amortisation for
leasehold land and land use rights (17) (16) (17) (16)
WIS~ SREREEMITEE N Increase in depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 17 16 17 16
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2 Principal accounting policies (cont.)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(b) New and revised standards, amendments and interpretation that are relevant to the Group’s
operations but are not yet effective

The following new and revised standards, amendments and interpretation have been published
and are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011, but have not
been early adopted by the Group:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKASs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 (Amendments) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement and

their Interaction

The adoption of the above new and revised standards, amendments and interpretation will not
have material financial impact to the Group other than the disclosure impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

2.2 Reconciliation of the amounts wagered by customers to betting and lottery revenue

The Group reports net gains and losses arising from all betting and lottery activities as revenue,
which is the amounts wagered net of betting dividends, rebates and lottery prizes. A reconciliation
of the amounts wagered by customers to betting and lottery revenue is shown below.

2011
EEEY EIREE
BEAA=THLEE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football 25 B
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
FEE BT KR Amounts wagered by customers 81,924 39,763 6,866 128,553
BEES  BHKkESES Betting dividends, rebates and lottery prizes  (68,475)  (32,643) (3,708) (104,826)
BERRESEBA Betting and lottery revenue 13,449 7,120 3,158 23,727
2010
EEEY EIREE
BEAA=THLEE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football 25 B
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
FEE BT KR Amounts wagered by customers 71,647 38,908 6,375 116,930
BEES  BHKkESES Betting dividends, rebates and lottery prizes ~ (59,840)  (32,494) (3,442)  (95,776)
BERRESKA Betting and lottery revenue 11,807 6,414 2,933 21,154

FENBRRETNETRIAE  BEENEHRSE -
RERBEREFARER YRR TR AREIN
FREE o
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The consolidated income statement presents the amounts wagered by customers but this is for
information purposes only. Amounts wagered represent amounts received in respect of bets
placed by customers on betting and lottery activities during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /FJI R M

2 Principal accounting policies (cont.)

2.3 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements, made up to 30 June
2011, of the Club and its direct and indirect subsidiaries.

(a) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.
Inter-company transactions and balances between Group companies are eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group. In the Club’s statement of financial position, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Club on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

(b) Associate and jointly controlled entity
Associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

Jointly controlled entity is a joint venture whereby the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity which is subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has
unilateral control over the economic activity.

Investment in an associate/a jointly controlled entity is accounted for using the equity method
of accounting and is initially recognised at cost. The Group’s share of the associate/jointly
controlled entity’s post-acquisition results is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the investment in an associate/a jointly controlled entity comprises the Group’s share
of net assets and its net advances made to the associate/jointly controlled entity, plus goodwill
identified on acquisition and net of accumulated impairment losses, if any. When the Group’s
share of losses in the associate/jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate/jointly controlled entity, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate/jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associate/jointly controlled entity
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate/jointly controlled entity.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transactions provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred.
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2 Principal accounting policies (cont.)

2.4 Contingency Fund

The Club’s Contingency Fund is held to provide a source of funds in the event that income from
betting operations should cease temporarily; to finance major capital projects, either for the Club
or for the Hong Kong community; to finance major renovations to improve the Club’s substantial
investment in property, plant and equipment; or for any other special purposes as deemed
appropriate by the Stewards. The Contingency Fund represents the market value of the Contingency
Fund investments and this is adjusted annually through the receipt of investment income, realised
surplus or deficit, revaluation of investments and, when necessary, the transfer of additional
funds.

The Contingency Fund investments are held for non-trading purpose and are stated at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. The surplus derived from Contingency Fund investments is
reinvested and deficit absorbed in the Contingency Fund portfolio. The accounting policy for the
financial assets of the Contingency Fund investments is stated in note 2.8 below.

2.5 Development Fund

The Development Fund maintained under The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited, is held
to accumulate adequate funds to finance future membership facilities. The annual transfer from
the net surplus of the year is approved by the Stewards taking into consideration the operating
surplus, interest income earned by this Fund, and the amounts of entrance and qualification fees
of Full and Corporate Members, and Country Concession Scheme joining fees received during
the year. The financial assets of the Development Fund are included in long-term investment
portfolios.

2.6 Long-term investment portfolios

The primary purpose of the long-term investment portfolios is to invest surplus funds in excess

of normal operational requirements for capital appreciation over the medium to long-term.
These portfolios are held for non-trading purpose and are stated at fair value at the end of the

reporting period. The surplus derived from these investments is reinvested and deficit absorbed

within these portfolios. The accounting policy for the financial assets of the long-term investment

portfolios is stated in note 2.8 below.

2.7 Debt securities portfolio

The primary purpose of debt securities is to invest surplus funds for cash management and yield
enhancement. They are held for non-trading purpose and are stated at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The accounting policy for the financial assets of debt securities portfolio is
stated in note 2.8 below.

2.8 Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: available-for-sale financial
assets, derivative financial instruments, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, and cash and cash equivalents. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of the
financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.
The Contingency Fund investments, long-term investment portfolios, and debt securities portfolio
may contain these financial assets. Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade day — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the assets. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /FJI R M

2 Principal accounting policies (cont.)

2.8 Financial assets (cont.)

(a) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category
or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
the investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of
the reporting period. They comprise local and overseas listed or unlisted equities, debt securities
and/or alternative investments. Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and retained in the investment revaluation reserve until the assets are sold. On the sale
of these assets, the differences between the net sale proceeds and the carrying value and the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
from investment revaluation reserve to “Surplus/deficit from securities investments and long-term
investment portfolios” or “Surplus/deficit from Contingency Fund investments”.

Alternative investments include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds and private
real estate funds. For those which do not have quoted market prices in an active market, their
fair values will be determined with reference to the values established by external fund managers
using valuation techniques.

(b) Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivatives such as interest rate swaps, equity options or foreign exchange forward
contracts to manage its financial risks and to facilitate the implementation of its investment
strategies. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date derivative contracts are
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Changes in fair value of the
derivatives are recognised in consolidated income statement unless the derivatives are designated
as hedges.

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category consists of notes with embedded derivatives and certain investments in securities.
The economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are not closely linked to the
underlying assets. The Group designates these assets at fair value at inception. Changes in the
fair value of these assets are included in the consolidated income statement in the period in
which they arise. Upon disposal or repurchase, the difference between the net sale proceeds or
the net payment and the carrying value is included in the consolidated income statement. Assets
in this category are classified as current assets if expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current assets.

(d) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method and are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period where these are classified as non-current assets.

The Group’s loans and receivables comprise “Loans and receivables” as shown in note 22 and
“Short-term deposits” in the consolidated and Club’s statements of financial position.
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2 Principal accounting policies (cont.)

2.8 Financial assets (cont.)

(e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in the consolidated income statement — is reclassified from investment
revaluation reserve to consolidated income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the consolidated
income statement.

2.9 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land under finance leases are depreciated
or amortised on a straight-line basis at the following rates:

Leasehold land under finance leases over the lease term

Buildings 25 years

Plant and equipment ranging from 10% to 33% per annum

Projects in progress no depreciation is provided on projects in progress
since they are not in use. On completion, the project
costs are transferred to the appropriate property, plant

and equipment.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year in which they are incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /FJI R M

2 Principal accounting policies (cont.)

2.10 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that
are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are classified as investment properties. Investment
properties are measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs, and subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. They are
depreciated over the period of their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis at the same
rate as buildings.

2.11 Leases
Leases of assets where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain
with the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are
charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases of assets where the lessee has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at
the lower of the fair value of the leased assets or the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the capital and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the capital balances outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in non-current liabilities. The finance charges are charged to
the consolidated income statement over the lease term.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful
lives or the lease term.

2.12 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held-for-sale when their carrying amount is to
be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
weighted average cost less provision for diminution in value. Spare parts are amortised over a
period of five years on a straight-line basis.

2.14 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Club’s subsidiaries, associate
and jointly controlled entity operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 Principal accounting policies (cont.)
2.14 Current and deferred taxation (cont.)

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. The principal temporary differences arise from depreciation on property,
plant and equipment and investment properties. Taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period are used to determine deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investment in an associate
and a jointly controlled entity, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.

2.15 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Club’s functional currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions are
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. Assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period. The
differences arising from translation are recognised in the consolidated income statement except
for translation differences on non-monetary items of available-for-sale financial assets, such as
equities, which are included in the investment revaluation reserve.

The results and financial position of all Group entities that have a functional currency different
from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

— assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of each reporting period;

— income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments are recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign entity is partially
disposed of or sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /FJI R M

2 Principal accounting policies (cont.)
2.16 Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.17 Revenue recognition
Revenue from horse race betting represents amounts wagered net of betting dividends and rebates
and is recognised when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from football betting represents amounts wagered net of betting dividends and is
recognised when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from lottery represents commission income and is recognised when the relevant
betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from membership subscription fees is recognised when payment becomes due.

Revenue from membership entrance and qualification fees is recognised in the month of election
and when no significant uncertainty as to its collectibility exits.

Revenue from gate admission to race events and racing sponsorship income is recognised
when the event has been held.

Revenue from food and beverage sales, other member services and livery charges is recognised
when the relevant services have been rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Royalty income is shown net of overseas withholding taxes and recognised on the accruals
basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.

2.18 Staff costs

(a) Defined benefit scheme

The defined benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) provides pension benefits to employees upon
retirement with reference to the final salaries of the employees.

The retirement benefit costs are assessed using the projected unit credit method and the cost
of providing pensions is charged to the consolidated income statement so as to spread the cost
over the service lives of employees in accordance with the advice of the actuary who carries out
a full valuation of the Scheme periodically. The pension obligation is measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows using market yields of government securities which
have terms of maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. Actuarial gains and losses,
to the extent that any cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or loss exceeds ten per cent of the
greater of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of Scheme assets,
are recognised over the average remaining service lives of employees.

Past service costs, if any, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average
period until the benefits become vested.

Pension liabilities, if any, are included under other liabilities in the consolidated and Club’s
statements of financial position. They represent the net total of the Group and Club’s pension
obligations; plus any unrecognised actuarial gains (less any actuarial losses); minus any
unrecognised past service costs; and minus the fair value of Scheme assets. If the net total
determined is negative, then the resulting asset, which is included under other assets in the
consolidated and Club’s statements of financial position, is limited to the net total of any cumulative
unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs and the present value of any future refunds
from the Scheme or reductions in future contributions to the Scheme.
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2 Principal accounting policies (cont.)

2.18 Staff costs (cont.)

(b) Defined contribution scheme

Employer’s contributions to the defined contribution scheme applicable to each year are charged
to the consolidated income statement for the year and are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully for the contributions. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

(c) Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
Employer’s contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (the “MPF scheme”) are charged
to the consolidated income statement for the year.

(d) Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, bonuses, paid annual leave are recognised in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees.

2.19 Related party

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is considered to be related
to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise
significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or
where the Group and the party are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals
or entities.

2.20 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested at least
annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /FJI R M

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to exercise significant
judgements in the selection and application of accounting principles, including making estimates
and assumptions. The following significant accounting policies are impacted by judgements and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions
or using different assumptions.

3.1 Estimated useful life and depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The Group estimates the useful lives of the various categories of property, plant and equipment
on the basis of a planned asset maintenance programme and actual usage experience. Depreciation
is calculated using the straight-line method at rates sufficient to write off their cost or valuation
over their estimated useful lives (note 2.9).

Actual useful lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could result in a
change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation expense in future periods.

3.2 Pension costs

The Group employs independent valuation professionals to conduct annual assessments of the
actuarial position of the Group’s retirement plans. The determination of the Group’s obligation
and expense for the defined benefit element of these plans is dependent on certain assumptions
and factors provided by the Club, which are disclosed in note 20. Changes to the principal actuarial
assumptions can affect the present value of plan obligations and service costs in future
periods.

3.3 Income tax

Certain tax treatments adopted by the Group in past years are yet to be finalised with the relevant
tax authority. In assessing the Group’s income tax and deferred taxation in the 2011 consolidated
financial statements, the Group recognises liabilities based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax
assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

3.4 Provisions

The Group recognises provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made.

3.5 Asset impairment

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing
whether: (1) an event has occurred that may affect asset values; (2) the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the net present value of future cash flows from the asset using
estimated cash flow projections; and (3) the cash flows are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management to determine the level, if any, of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
significantly affect the Group’s reported financial condition and results of operations.
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4 Betting and lottery revenue
The betting revenue of the Group comprises horse race betting, football betting and lottery.

BEET in HK$ million 2011 2010
ESEY Horse race betting 13,449 11,807
BHRIEE Football betting 7,120 6,414
5 Lottery 3,158 2,933

23,727 21,154
5 #FIRMAE 5 Net margin and commission

MAREETEER ERBERIREREZERNE
% B4 - BRI REIMEE BT HIFIE

RBERERFRIBEFRNEZERNRE - BEHKRE
REESHFR

Net margin represents the amounts wagered on horse race betting and football betting net of
the related betting dividends, rebates, betting duty, and payment to racing jurisdictions outside
Hong Kong.

Commission represents the amounts wagered on lottery net of related prizes, duty and payment
to Lotteries Fund.

BEET in HK$ million 2011 2010
ESERAR Horse race betting net margin 3,663 3,230
BIRIEF AT Football betting net margin 3,560 3,207
R5Me Lottery commission 412 383

7,635 6,820
6 Hidg A 6 Other revenue

SEEMEATEBESEASE SEERERS
& ASE BEFE  EFEWE  RARHEEMSRA
R ag s REREHIKE -

Other revenue of the Group principally comprises membership entrance, qualification and
subscription fees, gate admission charges, livery charges, royalty income, catering sales and
charges for services provided to Members.

7 FEERE 7 Operating costs

BEET in HK$ million 2011 2010
BTRA (FiEE12) Staff costs (note 12) 2,898 2,812
EEZRE Prize money 799 753
EhEEEENES Operating lease rentals on land and buildings 130 126
ZEET N & Auditor’'s remuneration 4 3
EEMSE Stewards’ remuneration = =
W - REREMITE (FFFE13) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 13) 870 889

EEANEE i 1 th{F B (FEE14) Amortisation for leasehold land and land use rights under
operating leases (note 14) 25 -
FIAEETIRE B N#HER L Capitalisation of amortisation to projects in progress (25) -
REVETE (MiEE15) Depreciation of investment properties (note 15) 1 1
W - RIEREMBE (FFE13) Impairment of property, plant and equipment (note 13) 8 9
EEmAA Cost of inventories sold 435 388
H i £ p A Other operating costs 1,644 1,330
6,789 6,311
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8 Surplus from securities investments and long-term investment portfolios

BEET in HK$ million 2011 2010
HEAHEENKEENRER Surplus on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets:
- ENtE—BRANKRESHRLS/(BER) 21 — realisation of amounts previously recognised
in investment revaluation reserve at 1 July 12 (24)
- REEFEENEEE — amount arising in current year 544 91
556 67
AHHENKEERE (AE) Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets (Note) (95) =
EHRERE R Dividend income from listed equities 61 56
EEMBRERE WS Dividend income from unlisted equities 86 353
F I ERESFE WS Interest income from listed debt securities 133 108
Ik EmERE SR B Interest income from unlisted debt securities 63 71
TTESRMIAENF (BR)/ ks Net (losses)/gains of derivative financial instruments (165) 181
RAFEEEBERYRNIEEENF RS Net gains of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3 15
EEWE Management fees (16) (13)
626 838

Kt - RENAHEENBEERE - CHERRBET
BRIBERN > MEBETEAMSRESEHEDH
NTHEAEBBREHNHIE  SABE=O——%7xA

=T HLFE (ZO—0OF | &) NEEWERA °

9 EREESRENRR

Note: The Group’s investment in available-for-sale financial assets were individually reviewed for
impairment by management. As a result of the review, the Group reclassified HK$95 million from
investment revaluation reserve and recognized it in the consolidated income statement for the

year ended 30 June 2011 (2010: nil).

9 Surplus from Contingency Fund investments

BEET in HK$ million 2011 2010
HETHHEMBEENRE / (FE) Surplus/(deficit) on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets:
- ENtE—BRANKRESHRLS/(BR) 21 — realisation of amounts previously recognised
in investment revaluation reserve at 1 July 27 (630)
- REEFEENEEE — amount arising in current year 673 353
700 277)
EHRERERE Dividend income from listed equities 926 81
F T ERESFE WS Interest income from listed debt securities 103 107
I EmERE S F B Interest income from unlisted debt securities 64 58
TTESRMI AT (BR)/ ks Net (losses)/gains of derivative financial instruments (88) 136
EEWE Management fees (30) (25)
845 80
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10 #IE 10 Taxation
BEET in HK$ million 2011 2010
PN Current income tax
- B8 — Hong Kong 322 250
- BB — outside Hong Kong 7 =
IEERITE (FiEE26) Deferred taxation (note 26)
- BB — Hong Kong 6 32
- BB — outside Hong Kong 10 =
345 282

FRFEHDREAFE AT ERBUEFZRED 21X
BHE(ZO-OF : gz TAHA) BiRFHE - BB
LUNERBURFFTELE PSS - CERARBEEAN
BiR{EHEME o

SERBARSRAEENERSIE - BREFBFE
BB R EBIREFUNT ¢

Hong Kong profits tax had been provided at 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Income tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong has been provided at the

rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The taxation on the Group’s surplus before taxation differed from the theoretical amount that

would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

BEET in HK$ million 2011 2010
HRBiE - BIERSEEESEREBAR Surplus before taxation, charitable donations to

EHRTEARSANEL Charities Trust and transfer to Contingency Fund 4,561 3,314
EBIE16.5% (ZO—OF : 16.5%) 5t& Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) 752 547
HAERTE SRR ENZE Effect of different income tax rates in other countries 7 =
BEFBUN SRR Tax effect of non-taxable income (260) (263)
AAHB L HOB B E Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 229 369
RUBERANFRE Tax effect of approved charitable donations (368) (378)
HAt Others (15) 7
HIEZH Taxation charge 345 282
11 B 11 Appropriations

BRTEAETERECRES ([FREL]) 2EH
SENFHEEARBREETES  HMEESAE -

Appropriations to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust ( the “Trust” ) represents transfer

of the Group’s net surplus to the Trust for its charitable purposes.

12 ETRAE 12 Staff costs

BEET in HK$ million 2011 2010

i R H AR AR Salaries and other costs 2,719 2,600

BIRERA—REMRRETE Pension costs - defined contribution plan 27 21

BRERA—FRERFFE (iEE20) Pension costs - Scheme (note 20) 20 134

ES IR MPF contributions 62 57
2,898 2,812
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13 Property, plant and equipment

£E Group
mMERNAE L EETH
Leasehold B 158 IfREH
land under BgF Plantand  Projects in Fek]
BBET in HK$ million finance leases Buildings equipment progress Total
—O—OFtA—BEAE Cost at 1 July 2010 1,561 3,726 9,291 406 14,984
BE Additions - 14 421 401 836
R Transfers - 11 82 (93) -
EERTEERORE £t K b E A Transfer to leasehold land and land
use rights under operating leases - - - (135) (135)
BE Disposals = (1) (493) = (494)
B HIAERE Currency translation differences - - 17 3 20
—O—FRA=t+HEEE Cost at 30 June 2011 1,561 3,750 9,318 582 15,211
ZO—OFtB—HEBNERREE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2010 (975) (2,467) (6,780) - (10,222)
AEETE Depreciation for the year (17) (114) (739) — (870)
AEERE Impairment for the year - (7) (1) — (8)
b= Disposals - - 491 - 491
BN RE Currency translation differences - - (7) = (7)
ZO——FRA=THEBERERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2011 (992) (2,588) (7,036) -  (10,616)
ZO——FA~A=THEREFE Net book value at 30 June 2011 569 1,162 2,282 582 4,595
“OONFLRA—BRAE  MERI 2 Cost at 1 July 2009,
as previously reported - 3,662 8,514 292 12,468
RnEBEHER| Effect of adoption of
FATEH (1BF]) MEE (MiFE2.1(a)) HKAS 17 (amendment) (note 2.1(a)) 1,561 = = - 1,561
“OONELtA—BEAME » NEF Cost at 1 July 2009, as restated 1,561 3,662 8,514 292 14,029
BE Additions - 38 850 293 1,181
R Transfers - 26 152 (478) -
BE Impairment - - = (1) (1)
-] Disposals - = (225) = (225)
—O—OFA~A=t+HEAE Cost at 30 June 2010 1,561 3,726 9,291 406 14,984
ZOONhFEtB—HEBTERREE Accumulated depreciation and
mMER 23R impairment at 1 July 2009,
as previously reported - (2,339) (6,251) - (8,590)
s et Effect of adoption of
F4175% (1BF]) WEE (EE2.1(a)) HKAS 17 (amendment) (note 2.1(a)) (959) - - - (959)
Z—OOh&ELHR—H Accumulated depreciation and
ZBITERREE  MES impairment at 1 July 2009,
as restated (959) (2,339) (6,251) —  (9,549)
AEETE Depreciation for the year (16) (128) (745) = (889)
AEERE Impairment for the year - - (8) = (8)
HE Disposals - = 224 = 224
ZO—OFA~A=THEBNERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2010 (975) (2,467) (6,780) ~  (10,222)
ZO—OFA~A=THEREFE Net book value at 30 June 2010 586 1,259 2,511 406 4,762
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13 Property, plant and equipment (cont.)

BE Club
MERNBE L1 EETH
Leasehold B 5E IRRER
land under BgF Plant and Projects in EE
BEBT in HK$ million finance leases Buildings equipment progress Total
ZO—OF+tA—HEAKE Cost at 1 July 2010 1,541 3,248 8,028 2515 13,072
HE Additions - 13 332 286 631
g Transfers = 10 70 (80) =
BE Disposals = (1) (482) - (483)
ZO——FEXA=ZTHRAE Cost at 30 June 2011 1,541 3,270 7,948 461 13,220
—O—OFtA—HEBFERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2010 (975) (2,125) (6,062) - (9,162)
REEFE Depreciation for the year (17) (99) (577) = (693)
REERE Impairment for the year = (7) = = (7)
] Disposals - - 481 = 481
ZO——FRA=THEBTERREE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2011 (992) (2,231) (6,158) - (9,381)
ZO——FRA=THEAFE Net book value at 30 June 2011 549 1,039 1,790 461 3,839
Z—OONELtA—HBHERAME  NER2E Cost at 1 July 2009,
as previously reported - 3,186 7,378 224 10,788
RME B2 Effect of adoption of
F175% (1BR]) MEE (MEE2.1(a)) HKAS 17 (amendment) (note 2.1(a)) 1,541 - - - 1,541
ZOONELB—BRAE » A1ET Cost at 1 July 2009, as restated 1,541 3,186 7,378 224 12,329
HE Additions - 38 751 162 951
g Transfers = 24 106 (130) =
DEAIE] Impairment - - — (1) (1)
o] Disposals = - (207) - (207)
ZO—OFEXRA=ZTHREAE Cost at 30 June 2010 1,541 3,248 8,028 255 13,072
ZOONFELtA—RERBITERREME - Accumulated depreciation and
WER 2R impairment at 1 July 2009,
as previously reported - (2,015) (5,665) - (7,680)
RME B2 Effect of adoption of
F47%% (1BF]) WE (HEE2.1(a) HKAS 17 (amendment) (note 2.1(a)) (959) = - - (959)
—OOh&E+LBA—H Accumulated depreciation and
EBIMERRME  MED] impairment at 1 July 2009,
as restated (959) (2,015) (5,665) - (8,639)
REEHE Depreciation for the year (16) (110) (595) - (721)
BEERE Impairment for the year = = (8) - (8)
BE Disposals - = 206 = 206
—O—OFARA=tTHRBRFERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2010 (975) (2,125) (6,062) - (9,162)
ZO—OFEAB=1THEREFE Net book value at 30 June 2010 566 1,123 1,966 255 3,910
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14 Leasehold land and land use rights under operating leases

£E Group 5& Club
BEET in HK$ million 2011 2010 2011 2010
+tA—BRARE  MERER Cost at 1 July, as previously reported 1,561 1,561 1,541 1,541
s et Effect of adoption of
$17% (153]) WL (HiE2.1() HKAS 17 (amendment) (note 2.1(a)) (1,561)  (1,561)  (1,541)  (1,541)
+t A —HREAE MED] Cost at 1 July, as restated - = = =
BE Additions 936 - - -
EREIFETHIRER Transfer from projects in progress 135 - - =
EREREBENSRIE Transfer from long-term prepayments 258 = = =
B HIAERE Currency translation differences 50 - - =
NAE=THRRE Cost at 30 June 1,379 - = =
tA—HREHEE  mEA2 Accumulated amortisation at 1 July,
as previously reported (975) (959) (975) (959)
s et &L Effect of adoption of
FATEH (1BF]) MEE (HiFE2.1()) HKAS 17 (amendment) (note 2.1(a)) 975 959 975 959
tA—BREHE  nE5 Accumulated amortisation at 1 July,
as restated - - - -
AEE Amortisation for the year (42) (16) (17) (16)
RS BEEstE HJ Effect of adoption of
FATEH (1BF]) MEE (HiFE2.1(a)) HKAS 17 (amendment) (note 2.1(a)) 17 16 17 16
B HIAERE Currency translation differences (1) = = =
ANB=+HEREE#HE Accumulated amortisation at 30 June (26) = - —
~NA=THEREFEE Net book value at 30 June 1,353 = - -
NE=+HEE LR T ithEAE (RERNN The net book value at 30 June of leasehold
EERY) REFE - BF TIHER BN : land and land use rights (under finance or
operating leases) comprised the following:
EEBES Held in Hong Kong
REEN (R+EUL) Long-term leases (over 50 years) 194 195 194 195
FEIFRL (TEZERE+HF) Medium-term leases (10 - 50 years) 369 379 349 359
SEHEY (TFUT) Short-term leases (less than 10 years) 6 12 6 12
569 586 549 566
EoMbIEE Held outside Hong Kong
FEIFRL (TEZERE+HF) Medium-term leases (10 - 50 years) 1,353 = - -
1,922 586 549 566
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15 Investment properties

£E XSS Group and Club

BEET in HK$ million 2011 2010
tA—HRAARE Cost at 1 July 27 27
BETRESEERE Transfer to assets held for sale (2) —
AA=tTHRAE Cost at 30 June 25 27
t A —HEREBERE Accumulated depreciation at 1 July (23) (22)
REEHE Depreciation for the year (1) (1)
ERTIHESEEE Transfer to assets held for sale 2 =
ABE=1HZERE Accumulated depreciation at 30 June (22) (23)
ABE=1HEREFE Net book value at 30 June 3 4

REWEEN=_O——FRA=THKR=O—0O%F KA
=+H  2BHEEY - SERNEXGEN [ FKETE
EFEERARIF] R MEBTERAR | ETE
HGE o MEARRERH SR TERREEET -
FRBRENEIDVNER - WEVEMEERN A FE
BEANE-—FTEEBR (ZO-—OFf : \EETHA
BAT) -

R=O——FRA=++tA  EEHEE=HTL—E
BENENTAEERBINRENELERS - BtE
BRZAN=O——FNAZK - R=O——F7xA
=10 ZERENEREBENE REREMRET
BT CENIEBAREREEE -

16 MIBAERE « ERRELR

The investment properties were revalued at 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010 by independent,
professionally qualified valuers “Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited” and “Jones Lang LaSalle
Limited” respectively. Valuations were based on current prices in an active market. The investment
properties are located in Hong Kong. The fair value of the investment properties was HK$416
million (2010: HK$854 million) on the date of valuation.

On 27 June 2011, the Group entered into agreement with a third party to dispose of an
investment property for a consideration of HK$889 million. The transaction is expected to be
completed in August 2011. The investment property and related property, plant and equipment
amounting to HK$0.1 million at 30 June 2011 were reclassified to assets held for sale.

16 Investments in, loans to and balances with subsidiaries

£E Group 58 Club
BEBT in HK$ million 2011 2010 2011 2010
HEBATRE - Investments in subsidiaries —

I EMRD - EHRAE Unlisted shares, at cost - - 1,134 1,134
BB A B FTERE R Loans to subsidiaries = = 1,910 1,152
FEW BB A RIMFRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries - = 147 113
AT HIE A R FRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries - - (3,202) (3,094)

BB A B AT E BRI IR A - REEEAS - AR
EHERBHEE - ERWIREEE BEQFEE
% e

FEU B B 8 1 B YRR R EPILARIRAR - BANE -
ARMEHEREFER - SRFUIEIRR - RIS LLERHH
SHRFE  WAMEHEREEE - BEFENERE
BEEEAFEERES -

FEAS TR/ 2 BV RIR AR - RIS AERHN TS
MRFFE - WARMEHEREHEER - BREFCENIREE
ERAQNFEEES -

EEXRETENBELARAINBRNGEHBERRE
—BAThREE-BELttE-

148 /

The loans to subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. The
carrying amounts of the loans approximated their fair values.

The majority of the amounts due from subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand. The remaining balance was unsecured, interest bearing at prevailing market
rates and repayable on demand. The carrying amounts approximated their fair values.

Amounts due to subsidiaries were unsecured, interest bearing at prevailing market rates and
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts approximated their fair values.

The principal subsidiaries of the Club are shown on pages 169 to 170 of the consolidated
financial statements.



17 BHEATREREKRIE

17 Investment in and amount due from an associate

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /FJI R M

£E Group 5& Club
BEET in HK$ million 2011 2010 2010
tA—A At 1 July - 7 -
FribE1E Share of loss - (8) =
B HIAERE Currency translation differences - 1 =
HE Disposals = = =
~NA=1+H At 30 June - = =
FER B HE A B FRIE Amount due from an associate - 11 =

HARAREBNHTRER S EXRERROBERA TN
EERN > MZLARER=O——FHATNBRLR
REBNEELR - BE-O——F<A=+HL E
WRBEMEROABRABDNEERE  SEHDRR
AHMREEE °

REBWELNABE_O—-OF A A=THIEWEEER

On 18 May 2011, Taiwan Sport Lottery Corporation (“TSLC”) ceased to be an associate of
the Group as the Executive Directors representing the Group resigned from the Board of Directors
of TSLC. The related amount due from TSLC was reclassified to other current assets as at

30 June 2011.

A summary of financial information of the associate based on its management accounts as of

30 June 2010 is as follows:

B mim SN K ERHEZENT ¢

BBET in HK$ million £8 Group E& Club
£EEFEN BEREW
BRAESL BREHSL
Group’s Club’s
effective effective
interest interest
100% 24.5% =
EE Assets 131 — =
af& Liabilities (297) = =
ez Equity (166) - -
Wz Income 138 6 -
ZH Expenses (305) (12) -
i EE Loss after taxation (198) (8) =
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18 HEFHIEERE

18 Investment in a jointly controlled entity

£E Group 58 Club

BEET in HK$ million 2011 2010 2011 2010
+tHA—H At 1 July 36 - -
mAEEHEREAER Capital injection in a jointly controlled entity - 61 -
FritaAl / (B518) Share of profit/(loss) 15 (25) -
B HIRERE Currency translation differences 3 - =
NA=TH At 30 June 54 36 -
HEZEHERFEOT ¢ Details of the jointly controlled entity are as follows:

EPEARANBEZMALNFMERGRAT : EEREIREHZRA BeRESENERES L

Incorporated in The People’s Republic of China,
limited by registered capital

Principal activities

Authorised and
paid up capital

Effective percentage
held by the Club indirectly

I ERFREBRE EERMERAR
China Sports Lottery HKJC Infotech
(Beijing) Co., Ltd

RIESEATMZR  LERSEADSUABEALRPE
SRR ERRMBRARDKEZRMNES HZGRE - Bt
SENEDIERRZEFER AR -

RELEZEFEREE A= HIEWEEERE HmH
MM ERHERNT

REEERIR ~ BMEFIR
B EMHB AR

provision of computer technology,
technical training and
business information consultancy

ARBASTETR
RMB60,000,000

90%

Under the joint venture agreement, none of the joint venture partners has unilateral control over
the economic activities of China Sports Lottery HKJC Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd and hence, the
Group’s interests are accounted for as a jointly controlled entity.

A summary of financial information of the jointly controlled entity based on its management

accounts as of 30 June was as follows:

£ Group BE Club

BEBT in HK$ million 2011 2010 2011 2010
EEZEMN EEFEN BEREm SEREN
EBREILL BEREHALL EREHSLL ERES
Group’s Group’s Club’s Club’s
effective effective effective effective
interest interest interest interest
100% 90% 100% 90% - - - -
IERBEE Non-current assets 126 113 35 31 - - - -
MENEE Current assets 100 90 11 10 - - - -
GiEIN=RE Current liabilities (166) (149) (5) (5) - - - -
e Equity 60 54 41 36 - - - -
L6 Income 177 159 - - - - - -
Z Expenses 155 139 38 34 - - - -
BB &ER / (EE) Profit/(loss) after taxation 16 15 (28) (25) = = = =

SEELARZFHERSENESTEY R EMHA
&\
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There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity.
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19 REREHSE 19 Long-term investment portfolios
£E Group 5& Club
BBET in HK$ million 2011 2010 2011 2010
At SRR EE Available-for-sale financial assets
RE Equities
HEBLES Listed in Hong Kong 924 742 924 742
EEHNLEH Listed overseas 3,288 2,515 3,288 2,515
kLt Unlisted 51 51 51 51
4,263 3,308 4,263 3,308
BXES Debt securities
EEBLH Listed in Hong Kong 97 - = =
EEHNLEH Listed overseas 3,545 2,902 2,198 1,993
kLt Unlisted 1,376 1,233 1,252 1,233
5,018 4,135 3,450 3,226
FERE Alternative investments
1w/ Em Listed overseas 92 71 92 71
kLt Unlisted 2,884 2,316 2,476 1,940
2,976 2,387 2,568 2,011
12,257 9,830 10,281 8,545
fTESmI A (FEE30) Derivative financial instruments (note 30) - 93 - 93
HIFRENES Funds awaiting investment 320 314 320 314
F& Deposits 435 624 = =
13,012 10,861 10,601 8,952

EERSEMFNERRESRERNMETHERR=
DRRBEDZ=ZHIAROHEZA (ZO-—OFSHI%H
BAZZEHZERZENRX) - KERFEFNER
FEREFRNWEAEEEENFEERS - MEMET
HHRAD BB ELERNEF (ZO-OFFRIRLFR
HE) °

The debt securities and deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 3.49% and
4.09% for the Group and Club respectively (2010: 3.27% and 3.86% respectively). The carrying
amounts of the debt securities and deposits approximated their fair values and their weighted
average maturities were 7 years and 9 years for the Group and Club respectively (2010: 7 years

and 9 years respectively).

£E Group 5& Club
2011 2010 2011 2010
RBREHASUTHERTHE : Long-term investment portfolios are
denominated in the following currencies:

Ep uUSD 45% 55% 43% 52%
BT HKD 19% 23% 19% 24%
B#E EUR 12% 11% 13% 12%
ARE RMB 12% - 13% -
HE JPY 5% 4% 5% 4%
T GBP - 2% - 2%
Hith g Other currencies 7% 5% 7% 6%
100% 100% 100% 100%
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20 Hih&EE

20 Other assets

£E XSS Group and Club

BEET in HK$ million 2011 2010
Hith EERIBEMBARRRA Other assets represented pension assets of the Group’s

EEANEERE Scheme recognised in the statement of

BAGTEIRARESEENT : financial position which were determined as follows:

AN EANSEE Present value of obligations 3,122 3,046

STEIEENATER Fair value of Scheme assets (2,870) (2,500)
15 Deficit 252 546
RERBEREE Unrecognised actuarial losses 539 833
MM R RAMIERRESFEE Net pension assets in the statement of financial position (287) (287)
AEBAGEIWRELRNOT ¢ Reconciliation of the present value of

the defined benefit obligations was as follows:

+HA—H At 1 July 3,046 3,047

R E B ERBHBITIREE R A Current service cost net of employee contributions 139 144

FE AR A Interest cost 64 77

BEREZHNENE Actual benefits paid (177) (210)

BRNEFEWBEERE/(BR) Actuarial losses/(gains) on obligation 49 (13)

BB ESMHK Actual employee contributions 1 1
ARA=THBENNENEEE Present value of obligation at 30 June 3,122 3,046
FATTEEELAFEEESBHAOT ! The movement in the fair value of

Scheme assets of the year was as follows:

+HA—H At 1 July 2,500 2,317

srEIEENTEFEHR Expected return on Scheme assets 181 179

BERER Actuarial gains 276 121

EEHK Employer contributions 89 92

EE MK Employee contributions 1 1

2XHERE Benefits paid (177) (210)
ARA=ZTHEWNEEEELATER Fair value of Scheme assets at 30 June 2,870 2,500
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20 HivigE (&) 20 Other assets (cont.)
£ Group
BEET in HK$ million 2011 2010
ERRKRTPEERNFIBNT : The amounts recognised in the income statement were as follows:
35 R AR S A A Current service cost 140 144
B A Interest cost 64 77
sFEIEENTESTEER Expected return on Scheme assets (181) (179)
EERNBEFER Net actuarial losses recognised 67 92
FTABIARIAEEE (FfFE12) Total included in staff costs (note 12) 90 134

EREANEHEEBEROBASBRGNEETtEEET

The actual return on Scheme assets recognised was a gain of HK$457 million (2010: gain of

(ZO—OF : B&r={fE8) ° HK$300 million).
£E RS Group and Club
BEET in HK$ million 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
RERAGEINRE Present value of
defined benefit obligations 3,122 3,046 3,047 2,863 2,422
FEEENATEER Fair value of Scheme assets (2,870) (2,500) (2,317) (3,011) (3,353)
B8/ (BE) Deficit/(surplus) 252 546 730 (148) (931)
RIS ENER (W) / BB Experience (gains)/losses
on Scheme liabilities (27) (112) 5) 99 (15)
FFEIEENER (WR)/ i Experience (gains)/losses
on Scheme assets (276) (121) 782 363 (497)
EBER-O——FEMNETHREEARYENTLEEHE The Group expects to contribute approximately HK$87 million for the year 2012.
£E XSS Group and Club
BEBT in HK$ million 2011 2010
SEEEERE Scheme assets were comprised as follows:
RE Equities 2,013 70% 1,704 68%
EEEFERES® Fixed income securities and cash 857 30% 796 32%
2,870 100% 2,500 100%

AN ERBERRSD  TIRR[EI 2= (=
O—Of : Ao z=HI) ' FHHEENRITEHRES
Bz tHA (ZO—0OF | Bo2tHT) » AR
FEAROEFERADBES 20 (ZO—-0OF : BS
Zm) e

SREENE ERUERTREBR TAREEN
RETEHEE - RERESEFNE EHRRREIF
HEEHRE -

The principal actuarial assumptions used were: discount rate 2.30% (2010: 2.20%), expected
rate of return on Scheme assets 7.50% (2010: 7.50%) and expected rate of future salary increases

4.00% (2010: 4.00%).

The expected return on Scheme assets was determined by considering the expected returns
available on the assets under the current investment policy. Expected returns on equities and
fixed income securities reflected long-term average rates of return.

/153



21 EHEFEE

21 Debt securities portfolio

£E XSS Group and Club

BEBT in HK$ million 2011 2010

AR EREEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BEES Debt securities

18 Em Listed overseas = 446

L Unlisted 266 749

266 1,195

BNV EEBEBIERVIRNGEEE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 52 206

318 1,401

SEREEMFENEBESHNETHERNEZAES
ZZENE(ZO-OF : Aoz —HEN) - KEK
BEMFNEBRSNRIEERANTEERS  ®
HmmEFHIMREgAEME (ZO—OF : MF) - EF
BELUBTHETIFE ©

22 HfhiishEE

The debt securities carried a weighted average effective interest rate of 2.87% for the Group and
Club (2010: 1.59%). The carrying amounts of the debt securities approximated their fair values
and their weighted average maturities were 2 years for the Group and Club (2010: 2 years). The
debt securities were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”) or United States Dollar (“USD”).

22 Other current assets

£E Group 58 Club
BEBT in HK$ million 2011 2010 2011 2010
FE Inventories 88 83 43 45
ERREWFRIE Loans and receivables 299 228 222 210
FEfIFRIE Prepayments 373 321 154 128
PTESmMIA (FEE30) Derivative financial instruments (note 30) (2) 7 (2) 7
758 639 417 390

23 EHER
SERSENERERNMETHERFE - 255F
ARZ—EB_ER—EH-H(ZO-—OFSRAEEIZE
HBAAR-)  KERFENERERNEREEESRA
NP EEEE  MEMEFIHRRI AN TEAR
ATER (ZO-OF2BB/ATEARET=H) -
BHERABTRELHE

154—/

23 Short-term deposits

The weighted average effective interest rates on short-term deposits were 1.23% and 1.25% for
the Group and Club respectively (2010: 0.99% and 1.00% respectively). The carrying amounts of
short-term deposits approximated their fair values and their weighted average maturities were
94 days and 97 days for the Group and Club respectively (2010: 67 days and 73 days respectively).
The short-term deposits were denominated in HKD or USD.
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24 EHEH 24 Short-term loans

£E Group 5& Club
BEBT in HK$ million 2011 2010 2011 2010
IR ER Unsecured loans 180 466 = =

LIRS BT RRER - RHANER - FRERR
B ZOENAZEREHAS(ZO-—OFRBED 2HE
NR) - ERWIREEEEAE N FEERS -

REEFE -

BREA

25 MEfHERERTRMRIE

The above were unsecured short-term revolving bank loans with maturities of six months
and interest rate was between 4.86% and 5.60% per annum (2010: 4.86% per annum). The
carrying amounts of the loans approximated their fair values. The loans were denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”).

25 Creditors and receipts in advance

£E Group 5& Club
BBET in HK$ million 2011 2010 2011 2010
g S ENRAKRFBWRGRIE Trade payables and receipts in advance 3,050 2,907 1,897 1,729
H e IRF R FESTFRIE Other payables and accruals 1,177 931 671 637
4,227 3,838 2,568 2,366

26 REHIE (BR)/EE
FREFATEMR A RANIELTE (BE)/EEEBR
REZEERAOT :

26 Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets
The components of deferred tax (liabilities)/assets recognised in the statement of financial
position, and the movements during the year were as follows:

£E Group 5& Club
DRI E InERiTE
HBRER HIBRER
Accelerated Accelerated
depreciation Hith g depreciation Hity e
BEBT in HK$ million allowances Others Total allowances Others Total
—O—O%tA—H At 1 July 2010 (60) 12 (48) (59) 1 (58)
HBaw=Ex Charged to income statement (9) (7) (16) (7) - (7)
—O——%3XA=t+H At 30 June 2011 (69) 5 (64) (66) 1 (65)
—OOhELA—H At 1 July 2009 (21) 5 (16) (22) = (22)
(#8)/mAkEER (Charged)/credited to
income statement (39) 7 (32) (37) 1 (36)
—O—OfR<A=t+H At 30 June 2010 (60) 12 (48) (59) 1 (58)
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27 #iE

27 Reserves

£@ Group E& Club
REBMFHE REBHHE
REMHE  Investment EREE 2% Investment
Accumulated  revaluation Exchange #%8 Accumulated  revaluation “EE
BEBT in HK$ million reserves reserve reserve Total reserves reserve Total
—O—O%tA—H At 1 July 2010 19,288 (640) 48 18,696 15,765 (717) 15,048
FARERER Retained surplus
for the year 1,571 - - 1,571 1,598 - 1,598
B HIRERE Currency translation
differences - - 30 30 - - -
aHEE Surplus on revaluation
B EENEGAG of available-for-sale
financial assets - 1,043 - 1,043 - 1,024 1,024
A EREEE Realised gains on disposal
HERNE 2R G of available-for-sale
B ERARGE financial assets
reclassified to
income statement — (12) - (12) - (12) (12)
- 1,031 - 1,031 - 1,012 1,012
—O——%5xA=T1H At 30 June 2011 20,859 391 78 21,328 17,363 295 17,658
—OONn&E+LB—H At 1 July 2009 17,836 (631) 27 17,232 14,626 (654) 13,972
FARERER Retained surplus
for the year 1,452 — — 1,452 1,139 - 1,139
B HIRERE Currency translation
differences - - 21 21 - - -
A E Deficit on revaluation
B EENEGER of available-for-sale
financial assets - (33) - (33) - (87) (87)
A EREEE Realised losses on disposal
HERNEZERER of available-for-sale
B ERARGE financial assets
reclassified to
income statement - 24 - 24 - 24 24
= 9) = (9) = (63) (63)
—O—O%R<A=t+H At 30 June 2010 19,288 (640) 48 18,696 15,765 (717) 15,048
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28 HRES 28 Contingency Fund
£E KRS Group and Club
REBHRHE
Heste Investment
Fund revaluation g
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total
—O—O&%tH—H At 1 July 2010 10,591 (29) 10,562
ERRRRR Transfer from income statement 845 - 845
AHHENKEENEHAER Surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets - 1,108 1,108
AHHENKEEHERN Realised gains on disposal of available-for-sale
ERRNEEH D ERARGEE financial assets reclassified to income statement - (27) (27)
- 1,081 1,081
—O——%XHA=+8 At 30 June 2011 11,436 1,052 12,488
Z—OOh&ELHR—H At 1 July 2009 10,511 (1,108) 9,403
ERRRRR Transfer from income statement 80 - 80
AHHENKEENEHAER Surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets - 449 449
AHHENKEEHERN Realised losses on disposal of available-for-sale
EEREEEN I ERARER financial assets reclassified to income statement - 630 630
- 1,079 1,079
—O—OFAX~A=*+H At 30 June 2010 10,591 (29) 10,562

BRESRERRK Represented by Contingency Fund investments:
£ERES Group and Club
BEBT in HK$ million 2011 2010
At E K EE Available-for-sale financial assets
RE Equities
EEBLEM Listed in Hong Kong 2,916 2,337
EEHNLETH Listed overseas 5,156 3,116
8,072 5,453
BEXES Debt securities
EEMNLETH Listed overseas 2,295 2,057
LT Unlisted 1,408 1,377
3,703 3,434
PTEEMI A (FEE30) Derivative financial instruments (note 30) 8 (41)
HIFRENES Funds awaiting investment 705 1,716
12,488 10,562

EERSEMENEBRSHMETHERIZLED
ZOHE-—N(ZO—OF : goz=HhIt) - KEK
EEMFNERRESNREEEEE A PEEES - ™
HingEFgHRAB/NE (ZO—-OF : ) »

The debt securities carried a weighted average effective interest rate of 4.18% for the Group and
Club (2010: 3.97%). The carrying amounts of the debt securities approximated their fair values
and their weighted average maturities were 9 years for the Group and Club (2010: 9 years).
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28 HREE (@)

28 Contingency Fund (cont.)

£E XSS Group and Club

2011 2010
HEARSREUTIELTE : Contingency Fund investments are
denominated in the following currencies:
Ep usD 45% 52%
BT HKD 26% 20%
Bz EUR 14% 13%
=] JPY 5% 4%
T GBP 3% 3%
Hihg#k Other currencies 7% 8%
100% 100%
29 ¥ERES 29 Development Fund
£E Group BE Club
REEMFHE REBHRHE
Hes  Investment He48  Investment
Fund revaluation g Fund revaluation “azg
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total balance reserve Total
—O—O%+tHA—H At 1 July 2010 1,015 (15) 1,000 - - -
AHEENKEENEGRE Surplus on revaluation
of available-for-sale
financial assets - 21 21 - - -
—O——%X<A=t+H At 30 June 2011 1,015 6 1,021 - - -
—OONn&E+LB—H At 1 July 2009 1,015 (61) 954 - - -
AHEENKEENEGRE Surplus on revaluation
of available-for-sale
financial assets - 46 46 - - -
—O—OfAXB=TH At 30 June 2010 1,015 (15) 1,000 - - -
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30 fTAEEMTIR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /FJI R M

30 Derivative financial instruments

£E RS Group and Club

REBREAS BRESRE

Longterm  HitRBEE Contingency

investment Other current Fund

portfolios assets investments

BBET in HK$ million (FffsE note 19)  (FifaE note 22)  (FifaE note 28)
EHEFEN Forward contracts on bonds - - 1
RHIINESH Foreign exchange forward contracts 3 (2) 4
HE Futures 3 - 8
HARE Options 1 = 1
1= HA Swaps (7) - (6)
—O——%xA=+H At 30 June 2011 - (2) 8
EHEFEN Forward contracts on bonds 12 = 14
RHIINESH Foreign exchange forward contracts 6 6 4
HE Futures 2 - (65)
HARE Options 69 - (1)
1= HA Swaps 4 1 7
—O—O%XA=+H At 30 June 2010 93 7 (41)

31 MKRHIE  BREZEEAESBERRRERTE
RESANRMBEEETHMELNFRERANER

31 Reconciliation of surplus before taxation, charitable donations to Charities Trust and
transfer to Contingency Fund to net cash inflow generated from operations

£ Group

BEBT in HK$ million 2011 2010
HRHE - BRASETESERSHBAR Surplus before taxation, charitable donations to

EETHEAESANEE Charities Trust and transfer to Contingency Fund 4,561 3,314
FHEEE AR R L EEHIER CaF))/ Eia Share of (profit)/loss of an associate and a jointly controlled entity (15) 33
HEMHEENKEEN (BER)/BiE (Surplus)/deficit on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets (1,210) 248
SN Dividend income (243) (490)
P E Interest income (424) (367)
FMEXZH Interest expenses 10 61
TSR T BERNFEE /(W) Net losses/(gains) of derivative financial instruments 253 (317)
RAFEEEBERYRNIEEENF RS Net gains of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (3) (15)
HEYE - RIEREMEE Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1 =
M BRIEREMITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 870 889
REVERE Depreciation of investment properties 1 1
M~ BRIERSEMRE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 8 9
AR HER B EERE Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 95 =
EEESETH Movement in working capital

FE (Em)/ md (Increase)/decrease in inventories (5) 6

Bk EWFIE () /R (Increase)/decrease in loans and receivables (52) 46

FE{SFRIEIG N Increase in prepayments (51) (39)

FEABRFRIG AN Increase in creditors 418 632
REATE(TFRIEIE N Increase in long-term prepayments (29) (229)
Hitn&EE=R/ D Decrease in other assets - 43
EETBMEENRESRA Cash inflow generated from operations 4,185 3,825
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32 FRiE
32.1 BEAREE
REFAREREENERTHIT ¢

32 Commitments
32.1 Capital commitments
Capital expenditures not yet incurred at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

£E Group
BEBT in HK$ million 2011 2010
BRI LA EREHERS Contracted but not provided for 880 1,484
EHUEBRTZEN Authorised but not contracted for 1,820 1,393
2,700 2,877
32.2 HERE 32.2 Lease commitments

RAA=TE  BRETTIHNERANRE  ALAE
EMORERBTENT -

As at 30 June, the total future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases were as follows:

£E Group
BEET in HK$ million 2011 2010
gx Buildings
R—FR Within one year 70 134
REZZFHFA In the second to fifth year inclusive 99 106
NERFE After the fifth year 44 42
213 282

33 R{ksTEl

EEAERESR LT —BEAERMNFER-—BEREHE
a2l o WA B9 RIE (BB RS EMRG)) X -
WHBIEEATE o A EENESE-BERE
Rt AT SR - EBRE GaREIEAESH
BUEA) M > R RIE BRI A -

34 MEMAEALZRS

HREEESRRETRFEEETESETA - AR
ESSEANARBSEARSARAAMEFTEXYR
BFERARESRIRE  AULFEHEETES  BEFS
EEMNARSEANEERARAREFTEXYRE SR

ARHHERE -
EEREAT © HEAEHERRAMAEEALD

BANRSHT :

341 EEEH

FR - KEBERTEEZERY - AETESWEE
EEANTHNAEEEL (ZO—OF : IF&ET) °

34.2 BEDQRREERNWE
SEEFARBEENRROAR A DESED IR
BHEEASFERA-—F-EAEET (ZO0-O%F:
—ThEB#r) -
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33 Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme and a defined contribution scheme. Members of
both schemes are full-time employees of the Group. Both schemes are registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance and administered by independent trustees. The
Group also participates in a master trust MPF scheme registered under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The MPF scheme is operated by two independent service providers.

34 Related party transactions
The Club is related to the Trust, The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited (“KSCGC”)
and The Jockey Club CPS Limited (“CPS”) as the Club’s Stewards are also the Trustees of the
Trust and the Directors of KSCGC and CPS.

The following transactions were carried out by the Group with the associate, the jointly controlled
entity and other related parties:

34.1 Management expenses
During the year, the Group recharged management expenses of HK$44 million (2010: HK$40
million) to the Trust for provision of administrative and support services.

34.2 Income from an associate
During the year, the Group recognised royalty income of HK$12 million (2010: HK$19 million)
from the Taiwan Sport Lottery Corporation for the use of the licensed sport lottery software.



34 HEEFEEALTZRS (&)

34.3 HEIHRGIHETEL WS
SEEFRBLRPEEEEERMNERA A WEMR
HHATEREZ=F-EEBEBRT (ZO-OF : hBR
BT °

34.4 HFARE
SEEBTRMNAT  KE-—BXEBEYK  BEEHY -
BHEY  URAAXES EEERARASSHAEN
DHRE - AEAITER - ERSE 0 URBAEERE
B URESEENEERER BN o £ ERM
WEER  REERSEERVBUEY RBETHEERN
BiZEo

BIEEBNNS - EEEBEUREEES  9551%
SFRBIIRIER - EXNWISENRE  IEEFABRE
BHEEZR - SEELAREAFENZE » AlRRE
KEEAGE PR ABRBEY « BERE¥Y > UES
AHBE-EFEERE IR -

345 FREEEHMN

ERESEHEEREE  THEBZSSHBHER -
ESRAERERENERBRESHRERESNE
A UERETEESEARE EEZESRETES
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34 Related party transactions (cont.)

34.3 Income from a jointly controlled entity

During the year, the Group received software license fee income of HK$32 million (2010: HK$9
million) from China Sports Lottery HKJC Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

34.4 Shared services

The Group operates three primary businesses - horse race betting, football betting and Mark Six
lottery through separate legal entities. In order to maximise the Group’s operational efficiencies
and cost economies, these businesses share the use of the Club’s established common selling
and distribution channels, corporate management services, and infrastructure facilities, as well
as back office support. The Group adopts a policy to fulfill its objectives of financial independence
with no cross-subsidy amongst its different businesses.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and overall financial results are maintained in the
separate books of accounts of each business. Business specific revenue and expenses are
directly accounted for in those business results. The Group’s expenses on the shared services
are charged to each main line of business of horse race betting, football betting and Mark Six
lottery at cost plus an appropriate mark-up.

34.5 Key management compensation

The Hong Kong Jockey Club is governed by a Board of Stewards with assistance from a Board of
Management. The Stewards are responsible for the overall policy and direction of the Group and
its funds as a whole, and have the power to effect and carry out the objects of the Group. The
Board of Management is responsible for the operational management of the Group and is overseen
by the Board of Stewards. To align with the disclosures of other major institutions in Hong Kong,
key management consists of the Board of Stewards and the Board of Management which comprises
the Chief Executive Officer, eight (2010: seven) Executive Directors and two (2010: nil) Directors,
as detailed on pages 18 to 19 of the Annual Report.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the years
under review.

The Board of Management’s remuneration consists of the following three components:

(a) Basic compensation
Basic compensation consists of base salary, housing and other allowances and benefits in kind.

(b) Performance-related compensation

This represents discretionary payments depending on individual performance and the performance
of the Group.
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34 Related party transactions (cont.)

34.5 Key management compensation (cont.)

(c) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits relate to the Group’s contribution to retirement funds or gratuities in lieu of
retirement scheme contributions. For purposes of meaningful comparison, gratuities in lieu of
retirement scheme contributions are disclosed on an accrual basis, notwithstanding the contractual
entitlement and date of payment.

The remuneration for the Board of Management during the years were as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2011 2010
HAME Basic compensation 53 42
ERRIBEM BN & Performance-related compensation 20 16
RIREF Retirement benefits 20 13
93 71
SRR T The remuneration fell in the following bands:
A Number of individuals 2011 2010
e FYl Remuneration bands
1,000,001 7t £ 2,000,00078 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 - 1
3,000,001 7 75 £ 4,000,00058 7T HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 - 1
4,000,001 78 7t £ 5,000,00058 7T HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 1 1
5,000,001 7 7t £ 6,000,00058 7T HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 2 1
6,000,001 7 52 7,000,00058 7T HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,000,000 - 1
7,000,001 T £8,000,0007& 7T HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 3 2
8,000,001 7 75 £ 9,000,00058 7T HK$8,000,001 to HK$9,000,000 2 1
9,000,001 7875 £ 10,000,00078 7T HK$9,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 1
10,000,001 7t E 11,000,000 7T HK$10,000,001 to HK$11,000,000 - 1
11,000,001 7T E 12,000,000 7T HK$11,000,001 to HK$12,000,000 1 -
15,000,001 7T £ 16,000,000 7T HK$15,000,001 to HK$16,000,000 - 1
17,000,001 7T £ 18,000,000 7T HK$17,000,001 to HK$18,000,000 1 -
11 10
REEIHHEENEIETERBAS Key management left the Club before end of year - 2
11 8
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35 Financial risk management

35.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s investment activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk, equity price risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group
uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce certain risk exposures.

The Group’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative
investments, which are managed by the Treasury Department of the Club and external professional
fund managers.

Risk management is carried out by the Treasury Department of the Club under investment
policies and risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Finance and General Purposes
Committee. Investment constraints and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-
specific restrictions and guidelines are set according to the investment objectives of each fund
to control risks of the investments.
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35 MBERER (8) 35 Financial risk management (cont.)
35.1 BERKREZE (F) 35.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(a) TEEEE (a) Market risk
(i) BB E fz (i) Currency risk
ERRERERNIMNETENRERR S FTAERH Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates relating
RAFEE) - Mol HEBEEE to investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.
EENEEREBETELEB T EXxHAREST The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in HKD, USD or RMB. HKD is

HoBaHEETHN  ARIERBTHEAEBER pegged to USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. Majority of RMB
o REFENARBEE  K¥2EAEXGTEE holdings are to meet future committed charitable donations and core operation requirements

WEZBN > RESHEZOEBRE - HERNES in China. The remaining currency exposure arises from globally diversified investments in
B DEREEZERMSESTENRERESRE equities and bonds.
FEg ° The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if HKD had strengthened/

TRETAZSHRPR  EBRTAUTEEEEY weakened against the following major currencies by the stated percentages, with all other
HERZ T I E DL IREIEE /8555 - fEHMATE variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus would have decreased/increased
AR#RARTEFTENERT » EENBRBIREGRE as follows:

WA /BT
£E Group
2011 2010
EEBIRTY HERBRBIE HEEBIRTS HERBRBE
ALK BRNTE ERaad:) BRNTE
RIS / $E55 Effecton (RIS /55 Effect on
If currency post-tax If currency post-tax
strengthened/ surplus for strengthened/ surplus for
BEBT in HK$ million weakened by the year ~ weakened by the year
AR RMB 5% 183 5% —
B EUR 5% 32 5% 27
H JPY 5% 24 5% 24
R GBP 5% 6 5% 6
5& Club
2011 2010
EEBIRTY HERBRBIE HEEBIRTS HERBRBIE
ALK BRNTE ERaad:) BRNTE
RIS / HE55 Effecton (RIS /55 Effect on
If currency post-tax If currency post-tax
strengthened/ surplus for strengthened/ surplus for
BEBT in HK$ million weakened by the year ~ weakened by the year
ARHE RMB 5% 174 5% —
B EUR 5% 32 5% 27
H JPY 5% 24 5% 24
R GBP 5% 6 5% 6
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35 Financial risk management (cont.)

35.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(a) Market risk (cont.)
(ii) Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in equity prices. The Group is exposed
to equity price risk as the value of its equity investments will decline if equity prices fall. These
investments are classified as available-for-sale financial assets in the consolidated and Club’s
statements of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective equity instruments had been

5% higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Group’s investment revaluation
surplus included within total equity would have increased/decreased by HK$673 million (2010:
HK$583 million decreased/increased on investment revaluation deficit) as a result of the
changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This
can be further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair
value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows
of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is
exposed to both fair value and cash flow interest rate risks as the Group has significant
investments that are interest bearing.

At the end of the reporting period, since interest rates are essentially at close to zero, if
there had been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus for the year would have been HK$39 million higher
(2010: HK$32 million). The investment revaluation surplus included within total equity would
have been approximately HK$192 million lower (2010: HK$169 million higher on investment
revaluation deficit) in response to the general increase in interest rates.

The Group controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and the investment
benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non HKD/USD/RMB
exposure. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s China operations is
managed primarily through forward contracts and borrowings denominated in RMB. Equity price
risk is mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified globally, by sectors and by securities.
Interest rate risk is controlled through benchmark duration guidelines and by investing across a
spectrum of fixed and floating rate instruments.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations as
they fall due. In addition, the Group may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a price
close to fair value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet exceptional
needs, the Group maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests primarily in
liquid financial markets and instruments.

The Group also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting
the amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Group to ensure that all
liabilities due and known funding requirements can be met.
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35 Financial risk management (cont.)

35.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(b) Liquidity risk (cont.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /FJI R M

The non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities of the Group
and Club as at 30 June are analysed into relevant maturity buckets based on their contractual
maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual undiscounted

HRIFBEEERE cash flows:
8 Group
2011 2010
ZEARUT =Z@BAZE—F =EARUT =EAZE—F
Upto >3 months wazE Upto >3 months g
BEBT in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year Total
FETEMBKER Non-derivative
financial liabilities
HEHEM Short-term loans - 180 180 466 - 466
FEATBRFR Creditors 3,590 241 3,831 3,437 210 3,647
STHET R (UFBEELE) Derivatives (net-settled) - (2) (2) (74) (2) (76)
3,590 419 4,009 3,829 208 4,037
58 Club
2011 2010
ZEARUT =Z@AZE—F =EARUT =ERAZE—F
Upto >3 months g Upto >3 months g
BBET in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year Total
FETEMBKER Non-derivative
financial liabilities
FE(FBRFR Creditors 2,048 216 2,264 2,057 181 2,238
(S FHIB A RMRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 3,202 = 3,202 3,094 = 3,094
PTEIR (UFREREELEH) Derivatives (net-settled) - (2) (2) (74) 2) (76)
5,250 214 5,464 5,077 179 5,256

R=O——FXA=+H SEREEFFENRTR
EHENMECHESEXEBLERETNE-—TLER
BT (ZO—0F | ATEBAETF=E8ER) - T%X
HEERFEBE—O——FARA=THLER=0-0
FARA=THIENRFEERNMESHELDN - BL
BRRREERE  YRABTANIHNBES RN
RAER - TRAMKBNRBERSORFTRASRE - B
FEREEMEIRR RGN IREEE (BHE) FE

As at 30 June 2011, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts held by the Group and Club were HK$5,919 million (2010: HK$6,553 million). The table
below analyses the Group and Club’s outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts as at 30
June 2011 and 2010 that would be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity buckets based
on their remaining contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are contractual
undiscounted cash flows, which are different from the carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in
the consolidated and Club’s statements of financial position.

£EREE Group and Club

2011 2010
ZEARUT =Z@BAZE—F =EAUT =@EAZE—F

Upto >3 months wazg Upto >3 months 4wz

BBET in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year Total
RHINESH Foreign exchange

forward contracts
pintas] Outflows (5,739) (180) (5,919) (6,523) (30) (6,553)
i Inflows 5,743 181 5,924 6,535 30 6,565
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35 Financial risk management (cont.)

35.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(c) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able or willing
to perform its contractual obligations in full when due. It arises mainly from the Group’s deposit
placements, debt securities and derivative transactions.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting the counterparties and by
diversification and deposits are only placed with financial institutions with good credit standing.
Credit limits are established to control the overall exposure to each authorised counterparty based
on its credit ratings and financial strength. Counterparty credit exposures are measured according
to the risk nature of financial products involved in the transaction.

(i) Exposure to credit risk

As at 30 June 2011, the Group’s and Club’s maximum exposure to the credit risk of financial
assets as defined in note 2.8 approximated their carrying amounts in the consolidated and
Club’s statements of financial position.

(ii) Financial assets that were past due but not impaired

As at 30 June 2011, the trade receivables that were past due but not determined to be impaired
were HK$71 million and HK$9 million for the Group and Club respectively (2010: HK$21 million
for the Group and Club). The overall impact of trade receivables on the consolidated and Club’s
financial statements is insignificant because the Group’s principal businesses are transacted
in cash with customers. The trade receivables mainly relate to the Membership business where
the credit risks are assumed by a licensed bank under an affinity card agreement. All the
receivables are due within one year.

35.2 Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern in order to
— provide a variety of world-class sporting entertainment to the community, while making
contributions in the form of duties, taxes and charitable donations, and
— support the Group’s stability and growth.
The Group monitors its capital which is same as the total equity shown in its statement of
financial position to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community in the form
of donations through the Trust.

35.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 7 requires disclosure for financial instruments that are measured at fair value by level of
the following fair value measurement hierarchy, which is categorised based on the lowest level
of input that is significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
financial instruments.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data.

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques in which any significant input is not

based on observable market data.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length basis.
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35 Financial risk management (cont.)

35.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

The following table presents the Group’s assets that were measured at fair value as at 30 June
2011:

£E Group
BEBT in HK$ million A Level 1 7B Level 2 # 7 Level 3 #2%8 Total
BE Assets
BERESRE Contingency Fund investments
AHHENEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BRE Equities 8,072 - - 8,072
BEES Debt securities - 3,703 - 3,703
THESHMIA Derivative financial instruments 8 - = 8
RBREASE Long-term investment portfolios
AR EMEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
R= Equities 4,212 - - 4,212
EBES Debt securities = 5,018 = 5,018
BERE Alternative investments 92 - 2,884 2,976
THEERMIA Derivative financial instruments 2 (2) - -
BEEEFES Debt securities portfolio
AHHENEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BEES Debt securities — 266 = 266
BRATEEESR Financial assets at fair value
ERIRNMEERE through profit or loss - 52 = 52
HitREEE Other current assets
PTESRTA Derivative financial instruments - 2) - 2)
12,386 9,035 2,884 24,305

TRETFR=ZO—OFASA=THUAFEEFENE
BEE

The following table presents the Group’s assets that were measured at fair value as at 30 June
2010:

£E Group
BEBT in HK$ million A Level 1 A Level 2 # 7 Level 3 #8%E Total
BE Assets
BERESRE Contingency Fund investments
AHHENTERE Available-for-sale financial assets
BRE Equities 5,453 - - 5,453
B Debt securities = 3,434 = 3,434
fTESmIA Derivative financial instruments (66) 25 - (41)
REKREAS Long-term investment portfolios
AHEENTERE Available-for-sale financial assets
R= Equities 3,257 = = 3,257
EigEs Debt securities = 4,135 = 4,135
BERE Alternative investments 71 - 2,316 2,387
TTESRmIE Derivative financial instruments 2 91 - 93
BEERESHES Debt securities portfolio
AHHENEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
EigEE Debt securities = 1,195 = 1,195
BATEEESR Financial assets at fair value
BRVI RN REE through profit or loss - 206 - 206
HiRBEE Other current assets
fTEEmI A Derivative financial instruments = 7 = 7
8,717 9,093 2,316 20,126
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35 Financial risk management (cont.)
35.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

During the years of 2011 and 2010, there were no significant transfers of financial assets among

the three levels of fair value hierarchy classifications.

The movements of the balance of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value

based on Level 3 were as follows:

£E Group
BEET in HK$ million 2011 2010
tB—AH At 1 July 2,316 2,480
LT IRRTERN (Fi8)/ W15 Total (losses)/gains recognised in
e Income statement (95) 48
ZHEREEK Statement of comprehensive income 288 (387)
BA Purchases 375 471
HE Sales - (296)
~NA=TH At 30 June 2,884 2,316
FATTARGRRIFIEZBFRER Total (losses)/gains for the year included in
REBREASEGN (Fi8)/ WS85 income statement and presented in surplus from
securities investments and long-term investment portfolios (95) 48
ERARFENEERERE Total losses for the year included in income statement
RERFTARBZRIFIEZRHFRER for assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period
RBREASERMBNEEEE and presented in surplus from securities investments
and long-term investment portfolios (95) —

36 LLBE=F
ETHBRBFZE TR  UESANEENRIAR

168/

36 Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with the current year’s

presentation.
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MIBAT
R=ZO——FxA=1H BESNETEWBELTEHE :
BERENEREDL
TEEK ERTRAEBRATMER BHE i3
GEBAMRY  BE22EHEH
BRHBERAA -
EEESESEYERAT HEEEEYEE —ERER—BTHZERRS 100
EEESERELERAF e RIS —ERESR BTN ERRS 100
EBESBESERAT BERARREER —BERSR -BITHNZERRNG 100
EES28EKARAT EEEEES2 8N HEELRIE —BERSR BTN ERRG 100
EBBEES (K12) ARAH ERAETRNEFFEINEEA MRS R AT ERR 100
BREERATE EEEERRSNER —TERSKR-—BITHNZERRNG 100
SRS ETEARAT EEEHHERHREERAT —BRESR B THEERRA 100
ETEREIEE
EREEEKAIRERAR R EEIEINERIRRE —ERER—BTWZERRD 100
EBEEEKAIR (FE) BRAR BEEEERNEERE FERER—BTHZERRS 100
BE2 R RERRAA -
EBEEE (BZ) ARAF REBEESENEAEETEEEET - 100
HESETENZZSBEENRBAR
BELEEEESEMERATNKRE
EBREZMRAY  BE2EFHEEH
RBERAE :
HKJC Reinsurance Limited ASENERETRREE TEBRSR—E=THRNG 100
TEHZEAN R FEFHREL
B2 BHEHFMERNEGRAF :
TR EBEESMERAT EEEES S NRHERELEE ATEEBET 100
B EESRMBEAEERAT 2 (SRR A I B A9 B Al B B8 I FA R AR 7% —TEEn 100
EBMESEESESIHKERLT TE AL EFE I 45 B5 VT 5| ARBR I ARBAEARTER 100
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Subsidiaries

The following is a list of the Club’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2011:

Issued and fully paid up

Effective percentage
held by the Club

Principal activities share capital / registered capital Directly Indirectly
Incorporated in Hong Kong, limited
by share capital and wholly owned:
HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited operates the horse race betting business 200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
HKJC Football Betting Limited operates the football betting business 100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
HKJC Lotteries Limited operates the Mark Six lottery business 1,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
The Jockey Club Membership manages Members’ social and 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
Services Limited recreational facilities
The Hong Kong Jockey Club acts as administrator for staff 2 ordinary shares of HK$10 each 100
(Managers) Limited retirement benefits scheme
HKJC Racing Club Limited manages the Racing Club’s operations 10,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
The Racing Club manages the HKJC Racing Club 10,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
Horse Management Limited Limited’s horse related activities
HKJC Business Ventures Limited holds the equity interests of the Group’s 100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
overseas business ventures
HKJC Business Ventures holds the equity interests of the Group’s 500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
(China) Limited business ventures in China
Limited by guarantee and
wholly controlled:
The Hong Kong Jockey Club acts as nominee for selected projects - 100
(Charities) Limited and holds investments in the Beijing
Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse
Limited, on behalf of The Hong Kong
Jockey Club or The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Charities Trust
Incorporated in Bermuda,
limited by share capital
and wholly owned:
HKJC Reinsurance Limited insures the Group against certain 120,000 shares of US$1 each 100
risks and exposures
Incorporated in The People’s
Republic of China, limited
by registered capital and
wholly owned:
Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club manages Members’ social and US$65,000,000 100
Clubhouse Limited recreational facilities
Beijing HKJC Technology provides computer hardware and US$10,000,000 100
Development Limited software technology development
and consulting services
Guangzhou HKJC Race Horse constructs and operates horse RMB660,000,000 100

Training Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FULL RACING SEASON / RE2ERFUBXER

BEBT in HK$ million 2011* 2010*
BRREEE Amounts wagered by customers 127,042 120,780
BEREFEA Betting and lottery revenue 23,480 21,788
BB R EHFEH Betting and lottery duty (14,833) (13,803)
R TIhtth B S AE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (51) (41)
BEES Lotteries Fund (1,030) (956)
AR RAE Net margin and commission 7,566 6,988
HAnl A Other revenue 2,173 1,971
9,739 8,959
&R Operating costs (6,772) (6,362)
RERER Operating surplus 2,967 2,597
FRA B WS Interest income from deposits 61 23
BERERRPREHSHNRE Surplus from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios 626 838

BERESRENRE Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 845 80
B E A Finance costs (10) (61)
B Bk Financial surplus 1,522 880
P& AR EE Share of loss of an associate - (8)
it EEHERER / (&i18) Share of profit/(loss) of a jointly controlled entity 15 (25)
HIRRBIE - BIBREEAESRERAK Surplus before taxation, charitable donations to

ERTHEAESANE Charities Trust and transfer to Contingency Fund 4,504 3,444
g Taxation (339) (295)
HIRBiIER - BERZESEEESREBAR Surplus after taxation and before charitable donations

ERTHEAESANEL to Charities Trust and transfer to Contingency Fund 4,165 3,149
BRTEBESSEEETES Appropriations to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust

- BRES — Allocations Fund (1,130) (1,100)

-EAES — Capital Fund (670) (400)
BRRBRHENFERR Net surplus after appropriations and taxation 2,365 1,649
ERTEAES Transfer to Contingency Fund (845) (80)
RE BB R HE Retained surplus transferred to Accumulated Reserves 1,520 1,569

*E2HE-—B=TEMFEL (ZO——F : N+=R

BE ZO0—0F | N+=ZRES)

*Refer to note 1 on page 130. (2011 : 83 race meetings, 2010

: 83 race meetings)
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SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS / EBBE

EEESEEE The Hong Kong Jockey Club Group
ESRITELHE Racing and betting facilities
BEET in HK$ million 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
ESBYEERIAE Amounts wagered by customers

on horse race betting 80,413 75,497 66,820 67,685 64,000
ESEEEERE Horse race betting

dividends and rebates (67,211) (63,056) (55,583) (56,221) (53,040)
EEBERA Horse race betting revenue 13,202 12,441 11,237 11,464 10,960
EEBEH Horse race betting duty (9,557) (9,002) (8,120) (8,286) (8,039)
AT I B AR Payment to racing jurisdictions

outside Hong Kong (51) (41) (32) (30) (22)
ESERAR Horse race betting net margin 3,594 3,398 3,085 3,148 2,899
EREEERREEE Amounts wagered by customers

on football betting 39,763 38,908 35,108 34,442 30,190
ERBELE Football betting dividends (32,643) (32,494) (29,308) (28,238) (24,764)
EHREBEUWA Football betting revenue 7,120 6,414 5,800 6,204 5,426
EIREBER Football betting duty (3,560) (3,207) (2,900) (3,102) (2,713)
BIRIEF AT Football betting net margin 3,560 3,207 2,900 3,102 2,713
RGBT RTERE Amounts wagered by

customers on lottery 6,866 6,375 6,429 6,382 6,589
BERE Lottery prizes (3,708) (3,442) (3,472) (3,446) (3,559)
BHUWA Lottery revenue 3,158 2,933 2,957 2,936 3,030
4 SR Lottery duty (1,716) (1,594) (1,607) (1,596) (1,647)
BEES Lotteries Fund (1,030) (956) (964) (957) (988)
RZ5MAe Lottery commission 412 383 386 383 395
HAFERA Other net revenue 965 933 727 658 544
eIl Total operating income 8,531 7,921 7,098 7,291 6,551
HEEEHA Direct operating costs (4,561) (4,410) (4,224) (4,195) (3,873)
IR Miscellaneous donations (203) (62) (50) (64) 3)
e~ e REREBEEXE Depreciation, amortisation,

impairment and expensed

project costs (750) (767) (667) (696) (658)
MBI A Total operating costs (5,514) (5,239) (4,941) (4,955) (4,534)
RE R Operating surplus 3,017 2,682 2,157 2,336 2,017
B R/ (E8) Financial surplus/(deficit) 1,437 942  (2,258) 2,821 3,209
HRBIE - BIERECAESRER/ARERETHEA  Surplus/(deficit) before taxation,

HERINRR / (B58) charitable donations to Charities Trust

and transfer to Contingency Fund 4,454 3,624 (101) 5,157 5,226
BASSELONEIRERS Unclaimed prizes transferred

to the Snowball Pool 54 68 65 102 74

LR FEERES (CO——FR=0-0F : &
N+=REE; ZOOhF > ZOONER=00t
F 2L RES) REREBHNERSIR - 818
HECTESAHSRANRERTRAESANERS -
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The above figures represent the results before taxation, charitable donations to Charities Trust
and transfer to Contingency Fund of racing (full seasons, 83 race meetings for 2011 and 2010,
and 78 race meetings for 2009, 2008 and 2007) and betting facilities.



ESEEEERAERAS The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited
EEaRiE Membership facilities
BEBT in HK$ million 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Wz Income
22y Membership subscriptions 172 166 160 156 192
SEARENRSELRE Member’s entrance
and qualification fees 109 81 80 75 92
BERER (B51B)/ B Catering (deficit)/surplus (2) 7 (6) 6 2
HAith 3B RER e Other non-catering income 35 32 32 31 27
314 286 266 268 313
BESKAEETHREY Direct membership
administration costs (229) (214) (179) (161) (161)
EREEXH Depreciation and
expensed project costs (94) (87) (72) (59) (52)
(323) (301) (251) (220) (213)
K (B58)/ B Operating (deficit)/surplus 9) (15) 15 48 100
B Bk Financial surplus 32 11 24 50 82
BEiATEER / (B5E) Surplus/(deficit) before taxation 23 (4) 39 98 182

RZO——FXRA=Z1TH EBFESESHERAIAVEKR
HEFEATN\EBETNEERERT(ZO-O0OF:
TNE-—FT-BE8ET)  BEYF REBRSIY
ZRNANTAEEEBR (ZO-—OF : IEZELtEESE
) REREASTEATEEEET (ZO—0OF !
TREBL) BEBELEESEEBT (ZO-0F:
TEEBER)  RBEEARLT=EEEBR (ZO0—
OF : ARETHEEERR) BERBEB—E
tTHEEELT (ZO-—OF : —BEATHARET) °

The net assets of The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited at 30 June 2011 were HK$1,858
million (2010: HK$1,812 million), including property, plant and equipment of HK$389 million
(2010: HK$407 million), long-term investment portfolios of HK$1,064 million (2010: HK$1,000
million), deferred tax assets of HK$6 million (2010: HK$5 million), current assets of HK$573
million (2010: HK$555 million), less current liabilities of HK$174 million (2010: HK$155

million).
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STATISTICAL SUMMARY /@ﬁ AHFHE

B=E Racing
2011* 2010% 2009% 2008* 2007*
EFH#E Race meetings
HERE Day meetings 47 47 47 46 46
RERE Night meetings 36 36 31 32 32
HIRE Total number of meetings 83 83 78 78 78
BithEFISH Races on turf 689 691 655 652 642
ERIRHBEESSH Races on all-weather track 78 76 78 78 84
IS Total number of races 767 767 133 730 726
=us Horses
B HEERE Total runners 9,502 9,736 9,179 9,136 9,083
B —I5ESHETHA Horses winning 1 race 321 328 279 344 305
s ES S A Horses winning 2 races 113 119 120 108 114
B =5ESHETHA Horses winning 3 races 44 39 43 41 37
BH=BU L EEETEE Horses winning over 3 races 20 18 19 11 18
BHEESFTHA Horses with winnings 498 504 461 504 474
REBHBESERAVESFTEE Horses not winning — placed 399 397 420 364 387
REBHBESTERAVEFITEAE Horses not winning — unplaced 380 374 324 256 293
REHEFTHA Horses not raced 279 260 255 246 201
FEUTA g Total horse population 1,556 1,535 1,460 1,370 1,355
REEBT Retirements 405 397 360 322 338
EERS Prize money
REBEE (HEBT) Total prize money (HK$ million) 785 782 763 718 685
FHFHEE (FHET) Average prize money
per race (HK$’000) 1,023 1,020 1,042 983 944
BUEFHIEE (FET) Average prize money
per horse (HK$'000) 504 509 523 524 506
FAERBREET Percentage of horses
HETABES L winning prize money in the year 62% 64% 64% 68% 68%
FAERBREET Percentage of individual runners
(HEEETAEE S winning prize money in the year 75% 77% 78% 83% 80%
FARBEARESERN Percentage of horses recovering
EZREFLHDLL basic costs or more in the year 36% 38% 38% 43% 43%
ESHFHABAE (F) Average attendance
per meeting ("000)
S Happy Valley 17.1 17.5 17.7 17.3 17.4
WH Sha Tin 27.7 28.2 29.3 29.6 29.5
EERIE (BE®BT) Racing Turnover (HK$ million)
i@ Standard bets 69,523 64,884 57,114 57,850 54,433
B Exotic bets 10,325 10,064 9,310 9,749 9,567
ElEREZEF M Fixed odds bets 565 549 396 86 -
#azE Total 80,413 75,497 66,820 67,685 64,000
* 2 EBEEHTER *Racing statistical data is for full seasons
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BA%5 Financial
BEBT in HK$ million 2011 % 2010* 2009* 2008* 2007*
HABEBBAHR Payments of duty and

taxation to Hong Kong Government
EEBEH Horse race betting duty 9,557 9,002 8,120 8,286 8,039
BRIEEH Football betting duty 3,560 3,207 2,900 3,102 2,713
S FEH Lottery duty 1,716 1,594 1,607 1,596 1,647
FIEH Profits tax 322 295 238 242 245

15,155 14,098 12,865 13,226 12,644

REFBEBEBRAES Donation in lieu of

Entertainments tax* to The

Community Chest of Hong Kong 3 3 3 3 3

*IREEE - WA =FMA — A REE o E2EEKE
SRBREFRENTSSASEREE EAES > B+
FE-OO=F=A=+—H HE#EHZE_O0O—=F
=B=t—H-

# Entertainments tax was abolished with effect from 1 April 1993. The Club agreed to donate
sums equivalent to Entertainments tax on racecourse admission to The Community Chest of
Hong Kong for ten years up to 31 March 2003, subsequently extended to 31 March 2012.

g8 Membership
RAB=+E as at 30 June 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
EARAEFEEEAY Number of Hong Kong
Jockey Club Members
2EEE Full Members 13,910 13,635 13,382 13,238 13,013
2EEE (9) Full Members (S) 189 187 189 193 191
BEENHEMES Racing and other Members 7,928 7,674 7,429 7,115 6,769
HEEE Absent Members 4,798 4,792 4,771 4,705 4,725
INF[E] Corporate Members 178 171 168 162 (55
27,003 26,459 25,939 25,413 24,853
HHREEEAH Number of Racing Club Members
BHRees Racing Club Members 535 450 358 275 -
BARAgEAR Number of Mainland Members
BAEE Individual Members 459 345 169 40 -
INF[E] Corporate Members 55 40 17 12 =
28,052 27,294 26,483 25,740 24,853
£EBEES Group employees
RAB=+E as at 30 June 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
el Full-time 5,385 5,310 5,303 5,137 4,626
SR Part-time 21,428 20,981 20,956 20,163 20,313
* 2 EEESTER *Racing statistical data is for full seasons
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